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Cougars in Ontario:  Myth or Fact? 

ens of kilometres away by the next day.  

Their tracks are like a cat or dog track: four 

toes showing. A cougar track is approximately 

3 inches wide by 3 ½ inches long; double that 

of a wolf. A walking cougar has a stride of 20 ï 

32 inches. In the deep snow, a cougar track will 

show tail drag marks and the tracks will be 

deep in the snow due to its weight.  

The Ministry of Natural Resources has received 

close to 1,000 reports of cougar sightings in the 

last decade. Most of these sightings have been 

in central Ontario. Over 90% of the sightings 

have been declared false; wolves, lynx and 

dogs are often confused with cougars. But in 

the last few years, some actual hair and scat 

samples have been confirmed as true cougars 

thanks to DNA testing. But positive proof of 

Ontario cougars has remained elusive, until 

July 2012 when a real, live, positively identi-

fied cougar was shot by police in Utterson, near 

Bracebridge. The animal had been seen several 

times and actually was shot while killing a pet 

dog. The Ontario press went crazy and every 

major newspaper in Ontario ran the story of 

cougars confirmed in Ontario. 

Are there really cougars in Ontario? This ques-

tion has inspired debate for many years.  

Historically, cougars were present long ago in 

Ontario, but never in large numbers. The last 

cougar was shot in 1884. Since then it is be-

lieved they are extinct. There were lots of ru-

mours, but no positive proof. The North Amer-

ican cougar is also known as a puma or moun-

tain lion. They are still common in Western 

Canada, but the eastern branch was considered 

extinct by the 1940s. But the legend has lin-

gered that some survivors still haunted their 

traditional ranges.  

Cougars shun human contact. Their primary 

diet consists of deer, so the primary range is in 

the vicinity of winter deer yards.  There have 

been cougar sightings at Bobcaygeon and  

Burleigh Falls in recent years. These over sized 

members of the cat family can grow to over 6 

feet long and weigh up to 200 pounds! They 

can be brown, reddish-brown or even light 

beige in colour. Males are much larger than 

females. They are great travellers: the males 

can range over 1,000 square kilometres! A 

cougar sighted in an area one day can be doz-
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camps tied to the lumbering in-

dustry, but as lumbering faded in 

the late 1800s, tourism replaced 

it. Most of these resorts were 

related to ñlandingsò or sheltered 

bays along the shoreline. Tour-

ists also loved the numerous 

islands that dotted the lake. 

The most famous of these land-

ings on Stony Lake is Mount 

Julian. It was a water-access 

community, and only later was it 

linked by road to the Burleigh 

Road and points north. Steamers 

from Youngôs Point regularly 

serviced Mount Julian bringing 

tourists and goods to be 

freighted north. In the early 

times when the Burleigh Road 

(now highway #28) were often 

impassable, the water trip to 

Mount Julian was often the easi-

est way to Apsley and Bancroft.  

Samuel Strickland purchased the 

Mount Julian site  from the Gil-

mour Lumber Company in 1863 

and surveyed a town site in an-

ticipation of great things to 

come. The village of Mount Jul-

ian never achieved village status, 

but it did grow to contain 2 re-

sorts, several stores, a dock and 

a church.   

The Mount Julian Inn was the 

north to Burleigh Falls and 

Stony Lake. In the era before 

the Liftlock at Peterborough 

opened the canal south in 

1903, Lakefield was the head 

of navigation.  

The Young Family quickly 

formed the Stony Lake Navi-

gation Company to exploit this 

opportunity. Thus Youngôs 

Point became a ñportò.  The 

improvement of the roads sys-

tem in the 1930s killed the 

steamboat era. Today, Youngôs 

Point contains a bridge where 

Highway #28 crossed the Trent 

Canal and lock 27 on this wa-

terway. A few businesses that 

cater to tourists fill out the 

commercial section. 

Clear Lake and Stony Lake 

have a mystical quality in na-

tive folklore. The Petroglyphs 

native rock carvings are found 

at the eastern end of Stony 

Lake. The earliest Europeans 

used the lake and its tributary 

streams for logging. Stony 

Lake has some very attractive 

vistas, and combined with 

hunting and fishing, attracted 

some of the first tourists in the 

Kawartha Lakes region. The 

earliest resorts were simply 

Why are these 3 subjects re-

lated? Historically they were 

all tied closely together. 

Youngôs Point is the narrows 

on the Otonabee River where 

the river leaves Clear Lake 

and starts its tumultuous drop 

into Rice Lake. Before the 

completion of the Trent Ca-

nal, Youngôs Point was the 

head of navigation for Stony 

& Clear Lakes. A steamer 

service ran regularly from 

Youngôs Point to Burleigh 

Falls, Mount Julian and other 

points on Stony Lake. The 

communities along Stony 

Lake were all serviced by 

steamer rather than by Road. 

Youngôs Point is named after 

the Young Family, Peter Rob-

inson emigrants who settled at 

the falls in 1825. They used 

the site to construct a dam and 

operate a grist/saw mill. 

Eventually a bridge and a 

store were added to the vil-

lage collection. The Strick-

land Family of Lakefield 

sensed economic opportunity 

to the north and through polit-

ical pressure, had a 6 foot 

lock built at Youngôs Point in 

1871 to allow water transport 
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first hotel (1865) and catered to 

lumbermen and then tourists. It 

changed hands with regular 

abandon over the years, and is 

still in operation today! The se-

cond resort at Mount Julian was 

the Viamede Resort, founded in 

1890 to cater to the booming 

tourist trade. Over the years it 

has undergone numerous expan-

sions and today is a major four 

star resort.  

The steamships and the lumber-

men are long gone from Stony 

Lake. The few farms are slowly 

settling back to Nature. But the 

sparkling waters and stunning 

vistas still attract tourists. Stony 

Lake has become a ñhot spotò 

for tourism and those seeking the 

benefits of traditional retreats. 

Or in the words of real estate 

agents, Stony Lake is hot, hot, 

hot.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 In the north-west corner of 

the Township of Methuen and 

about eight miles north-east 

of Stony Lake, with which it 

is connected by Jack's Creek, 

is a lake the real and common 

name of which is Jack's Lake, 

although on one map, at least 

it is called White Lake. It is 

derived its name from Hand-

some Jack, an Indian chief, 

who claimed all the streams 

and lands in this locality as 

his fishing and hunting 

grounds. He was considered 

the handsomest man among 

the Chippewa, then com-

manded by 'Cap' Paudash, of 

Rice Lake; he stood six feet 

four inches in height and 

weighed fully 250 pounds. He 

belongs to the Cow family. 

and among the whites was 

known as Jack Cow. Stony 

Lake, Loon Lake [Chandos 

Lake] in the Township of 

Chandos, and all streams 

south of Loon Lake was 

claimed by him as inherited 

property. He was most tena-

cious of his rights, and would 

invariably destroy all the traps 

of white men he found set on 

his streams. But he would 

allow the pale face to hunt for 

deer and partridge or to fish in 

the streams, so long as no furs 

were taken. Handsome Jack 

usually lived in a birch-bark 

wigwam, which he moved 

from place to place as circum-

stances required. Although he 

never missed an opportunity 

or rather greedily asserting his 

right to his streams and hunt-

ing grounds, he, nevertheless, 

was very hospitable to those 

who were friendly with him. 

He would often invite the 

whites to his wigwam and 

would order his squaw to pre-

pare a good meal of rice, bea-

ver, and partridge boiled with 

a little pounded corn. This 

was 'Te Pake', a hodge-podge 

mixture, somewhat akin to 

Irish stew. The hospitable 

Indian would sit by and ap-

parently enjoy seeing the 

white man eat at his fireside. 

When the repast was finished, 

he would light his pipe and re-

late thrilling scenes of his wild 

life in hunting the bear, wolf, 

deer, and other animals with 

which the woods were alive. 

Handsome Jack was the father 

of two lovely girls named 'Baby 

Cow' and 'Polly Cow', both of 

whom inherited their father's 

extreme beauty and perfect 

symmetry of form. The latter 

grew up a most beautiful maid-

en; her soft-tinted complexion, 

heightened by the rose-hued 

blossom of health, and her long 

black hair reached nearly to the 

ground, rendered her an object 

of envy to other dusky damsels.  

She possessed a fine  

The Legend of Polly Cow, an excerpt from History of the County of Peterborough 
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Side Roads of Kinmount:  Crystal Lake II 

While the meadows along the Flats 

of the Union Creek could be cleared 

& cultivated with a bit of effort, the 

next obstacle, the Long Swamp, 

was just a hazard. It started at lot 7 

and was about ½ mile of sheer, un-

passable swamp. To make matters 

worse, at its abrupt end (lot 10), the 

Road ascended a very steep hill 

called Daltonôs Hill. It took a lot of 

road building (mostly corduroy 

road) to push the Crystal Lake Road 

to lot 11 where it met the cross line 

called Allenôs Alley. This section 

was the last section of the Road to 

be opened and the most difficult! 

The Long Swamp was drained by a 

small creek that flowed out of Con-

nellyôs Lake and eventually reached 

the Union Creek. This creek was 

the northern branch of Vennerôs 

Creek. The centre branch flowed 

out of Vennerôs Lake (or Sheehanôs 

Lake) while the southern branch of 

Vennerôs Creek flowed out several 

swamps in the 8th Concession. All 3 

branches met the Union Creek in 

the Big Marsh (lot 6, concession 

10). Joseph Venner was an early 

settler along the creek in the 9th 

concession. 

The fringe of settlement in the 

south end of Galway Township was 

the 9th concession. Concessions 1-8 

were totally unsuited for farming, 

but a pocket of suitable land started 

in the 9th concession and ran to 18th 

(and last) concession. The pioneers 

on lots 1-6 concession 9 were dis-

cussed in the previous article on the 

French line settlement. But there 

were also several homesteads in the 

9th  that gained their access along 

the Crystal Lake Road. John Barr 

located on lot 8 in the 9th conces-

sion on the north bank of Vennerôs 

Creek. Since surveys were sparse in 

the 1800s, Joseph Venner unknow-

ingly located on the same lot, but 

south of the beaver meadow that 

divided the lot. Only later did they 

learn they both claimed the same 

lot! But in a ñGentlemanôs Agree-

mentò they agreed to split the lot 

along the course of the middle 

branch of Vennerôs Creek. Barr 

cleared a lot of acreage and eventu-

ally bought out his neighbour, Sam 

Faulkner to the west (an unoccupied 

lot 7). Charlie Molyneaux bought 

out the Barr property in the 1920s 

and added the Venner/Henderson/

Lougia holdings as well to build a 

600 acre cattle ranch. 

An English settler named Albert 

Baker patented lots 10 &11, con 9 

next door to the Barr homestead. 

While both homesteads had high 

ground, they also split a large bea-

ver meadow along the middle 

branch of Vennerôs Creek. Some-

time before 1920, the Bakers sold 

their holdings to Harry Dettman 

from Kinmount. Harry eventually 

bought out the Maguire lots along 

the Road and acquired a 800 acre 

farm. Harry Dettman worked a lot 

in the lumber trade and kept several 

heavy bush teams. To house these 

teams, he built a monster barn. It 

was by far the largest barn in the 

area: so large a team & wagon 

could turn around in each hay mow!  

Strangely it was never even close to 

being filled with hay from the hay 

fields on his farm.  

North of the Crystal Lake Road in 

concession 11, the high ground was 

settled by pioneer farmers in the 

1860s. Joseph Menary lived on lots 

7 & 8. He came from Quebec and 

stayed for a couple of decades be-

fore selling out to Maurice Allen. 

The next 3 lots were farmed by 

James Allen who lived on Allenôs 

Alley and left his name to the cross 

line. In 1871, three Allen families 

were present on the census rolls for 

Galway Township. By 1911, there 

were 9 Allen households: all in 

Mount Irwin Post Office (on the 

Galway Road)!  

The next section of the Crystal 

Lake Road was nicknamed: the 

Soldiers Section. In 1859 a group of 

retired British soldiers had been 

settled along the Bobcaygeon Road 

between Silver Lake & Union 

Creek. These retirees had spent at 

least 30 years in the British Army 

and were given both a small pen-

sion and a land grant. Their sons & 
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daughters were also eligible for a 

200 free grant upon reaching the 

age of 21 years. These old soldiers 

were into their 50s when they 

were settled along the Bob-

caygeon Road and most had large 

families reaching maturity. The 

original grants were on poor farm-

land, and the next generation pa-

tented lots along the Crystal Lake 

Road between lots 15 and 20.  

James Maguire moved from his 

swampy land at Silver Lake & 

settled on lot 15, con 10 across the 

Road from the current landfill site. 

A census names 4 sons: James Jr, 

John, Joseph & Frank. All four 

Maguire boys patented lots in the 

vicinity. Again, the land was not 

first class agricultural land and 

Frank & John relocated to lots 

further west on the Crystal Lake 

Road. Frank farmed on lot 25, con 

A at the Bobcaygeon Road corner 

while John replaced John 

Molyneaux on lot 6, con 11. 

On the north side of the Road 

lived James & John Dalton (lot 

13), son of John Dalton another 

Silver Lake soldier. They patented 

a number of lots, famed for 50 

years & left their name on Dal-

tonôs Hill on the east side of the 

long swamp. In the era of the great 

Westward Migration to Saskatche-

wan in search of better farm land, 

third generation Bert Dalton 

moved West. The Dalton family 

had barely arrived when the father 

died suddenly. Alone in a strange 

environment, the widow Dalton 

fled back to their former, aban-

doned home on the Crystal Lake 

Road where she was close to her 

Flaherty relatives. But good mem-

ories didnôt translate into good 

times, and the Dalton family even-

tually moved on.  

On the south side of the road Lot 

13 was patented by Johnny Ow-

ens, another soldierôs son from 

Silver Lake. The section of the 

Road in front of his homestead 

was called Owensô Shanty. The 

two lots east were settled (briefly) 

by Herb Clouston before being 

acquired by Ed Sheehan.  

The third north-south cross line of 

Galway Township between lots 15 

and 16 was called the Gully Road. 

It crossed 2 major gullies or valleys 

between the Crystal Lake Road and 

the Galway Road. The one gully 

was formed by the north branch of 

Vennerôs Creek as it flowed out of 

Connellyôs Lake. The Gully Road 

featured major hills that made travel 

difficult, was never snowplowed 

and used primarily to connect travel 

between the two side roads, and for 

travel to the Swamp Lake School.  

Lot 16, concession 11 (north of the 

Road) was settled by Dennis Con-

nolly who left his name on Connol-

lyôs Lake. His neighbour (lot 17) 

was Morris Sullivan. Both were 

present by the 1861 census and 

were part of the Duoro Connection. 

Across the Road (south side) lived 

Edward and Daniel Sheehan, also 

from Duoro. They left their name 

on Sheehanôs Lake; the same body 

of water on the south side of the 

Crystal Lake Road. On several 

maps it is also called Vennerôs Lake 

because the centre branch of this 

watershed has its source in this 

pond. I use the term ñpondò gener-

ously since Sheehanôs Lake is ex-

tremely shallow and basically a 

mud-bottomed bog; often called the 

largest frog pond in the area. Ru-

mour has it canoes became stuck in 

the mud.. in the middle of the 

ñlakeò!  

At the west side of Sheehanôs Lake, 

a cross line was opened south into 

some good land in concession 9. It 

was called George St, but today is 

titled Flahertyôs Road. It led to the 

homesteads of Edward Smith (lot 

15) and David Curtain Jr (lot 16). 

Both were later settlers who were 

forced further from the Crystal 

Lake Road because the lots along 

the Road were already taken. The 

Curtain homestead existed until 

recently and was called the 

ñPorcupine Innò. It was a junction 

for some major snowmobile trails.  

A road was opened between con-

cessions 8 and 9 to access the farm 

of Francis Flaherty on lot 18 in the 

8th concession.  
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The NEW Kinmount Tartan  

 
Menôs Cap - Tartan Scarf  

Tammy - Menôs Tie  

 
Contact Diane at 705-488-2635 

Side Roads:  Crystal Lake II, cont. from p. 3 
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Kinmount Bursary  

 Applicants must be enrolled in full-time studies (at least a 60% course load, or 
40% if you have a permanent disability). 
Bursaries do not replace expected Government aid; applicants are expected 
to apply to the Ontario Student Assistance Program (OSAP), (or another 
Provinceôs government student assistance program) to help meet education-
related costs. 
Bursary decisions are made in conjunction with the assessed need under 
your Government student assistance plan.  If you have not already applied, 
OSAP applications are available on the Ministryôs website:  
http://osap.gov.on.ca 
If you have not applied for Government financial assistance, your  
Bursary Application will not be considered. 
Application Deadline:  May 31, 2013 
Academic Requirements: 

Accepted to a recognized post secondary institution (University, College 

or Trade School).  Candidates must have a satisfactory overall academic 
standing. 
Bursary Eligibility: 

Bursary applicants are eligible to apply for their first and second year 

post secondary studies. 

Bursary applicants must have applied for and have been awarded OSAP 

funding. 
Bursary applicants must reside within a 15 km radius of Kinmount. 
Documents Required: 
Completed, signed Bursary Application within the specified deadline of May 
31, 2013. 
Applicant must be a resident within the 15km radius of Kinmount, as  
evidenced by  
1) a copy of your Driverôs License showing your current address or  
2) a copy of any other Government issued document showing your current 
address. 
 
Applications are available at the Kinmount Pharmacy.  

Everyone Welcome!   

Refreshments Served! 

Saturday, April 13, 2013 

2:00 p.m. at Galway Hall 
Since 1984, the Kinmount Pioneer Society has pre-

sented a Pioneer Exhibit at Kinmount Fair every 

Labour Day weekend.  The society is undergoing 

exciting change. The Open House provides oppor-

tunity to view rare, unique, pioneer artifacts, meet 

some of the crafts people who will be giving live 

demonstrations, and see pictures of the history of 

the Society as it has grown over the years. This is 

also an opportunity to meet some of the new direc-

tors who are looking forward to getting input and 

new ideas.  More volunteers always welcome!  

For a detailed history of the Kinmount Pioneer  

Society visit kinmount.ca.  To enquire about the 

Open House call Liz Case at 705-447-0151 or  

email lizandnick@live.ca. 

Kinmount Pioneer Society Holds Open House  

http://osap.gov.on.ca/

